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Source: ‘Defence
- Devonport
Naval Base -
Housing,
Ngataringa Road
scheme, legal file
(Penman
Property)’,
R22453672;
BBAD; 1054;
A463; 1040 / a;
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1952 - 1971,
Archives New
Zealand,
Auckland
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Source: ‘Defence
- Devonport
Naval Base -
Ngataringa Bay
Housing
(Naval)’(R224536
74; BBAD; 1054;
A463; 1011/ by
8/13/86/1; 2; 1956
— 1958, Archives
New Zealand,
Auckland

Group Architects’ letterheads: Lake Road in 1951 — 52 (source: Gatley2010: 10)
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The Group’s first
schemes for
Naval housing at
Devonport, with
41 and 60 houses
respectively.
GR26, UoA
Architecture
Library (in
Gatley 2010: 149)
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Four diagrams from a series of eight analysing the Ngataringa Bay site. Ngataringa Bay Navy Housing File,
Group 8, UoA Architecture Archive (in Gatley 2010: 149)

The Group’s preferred scheme for the Navy, designed in response to their site analysis. GP26, UoA
Architecture Archive (in Gatley 2010: 151)
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Naval Housing as
built in
Ngataringa Bay,
shortly before
demolition in
2003. M03-0113-
8A Royal New
Zealand Navy
Museum,
Devonport (in
Gatley 2010: 152)

Naval Housing as
built in
Ngataringa Bay,
shortly before
demolition in
2003. M03-0113-
22A Royal New
Zealand Navy
Museum,
Devonport (in
Gatley 2010: 152)
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APPENDIX 3: SUMMARY TIMELINE

The following table is a chronological summary of known changes in ownership, events and
changes associated with the property. Information is taken from primary and secondary sources.

Date Key event

c. 1650 Ngataringa Bay was valued for subsistence, transport and defensive purposes,
but not heavily settled by Maori.

1841 Land sold to the Crown as part of the Mahurangi Block sale.

1845 Land and surrounding area was purchased by the Hokianga resident and
Wesleyan Missionary William White as a part of a Crown Grant.

1847 Land purchased by Mr Thomas Duder from the Crown grantee, Mr William
White - used to graze stock.

1875 - 1880 Robert and Richard Duder obtained ownership of the land. They leased a few

acres to a brickmaker who erected a shed on the site and possibly a wooden
tram rail and trolley to convey new clay from the digging area. Clay was
packed into wooden moulds, dried and then removed from the moulds and
stacked in clamps for firing. Dry bricks were stacked criss-cross with layers of
ti-tree dry brush in between layers, for fuel. Fire places at the base were
ignited and regularly refuelled. Humphrey Duder (1982) said the clamps were
c.4 or 5inches high, but it is assumed he meant feet. They operated on a small
scale of about 600 bricks per day.

1880 Brick-maker left for the Coromandel gold rush. R.& R. Duder Brickworks was
established — a brick-maker named Andrews was employed and the small
scale hand manufacture of bricks continued as previously.

1882 Subdivision of land surrounding project area for suburban housing called
‘Victoria Park’
1890 New facilities were opened at the R. and R. Duder Brickworks. The new

Brickworks were equipped with two kilns having a capacity of 20,000 bricks
each. One of these was reportedly a “beehive” kiln (down draught type) and
approximately 15m in diameter. The other was a square down draught kiln
approximately 15m long by 10m wide. Another source says ‘two large dome
shaped’ kilns. A brickworks building approximately 45m long by 10m wide was
also constructed and three brick drying sheds each 120ft long. A 6hp Tangye
steam engine and boiler provided the motive power for the Brickworks. It may
have been an earlier man-powered machine modified for steam motivation.

c.1901 Wharf built for scows to come at high tide with coal and then load bricks for
Auckland. A canal was dug out of the Ngataringa Bay mud.

1902 It was reported the Brickworks had a horizontal brick machine, with a
capacity of 5000 bricks per day, and a pipe machine, all driven by a six
horsepower Tangye boiler and engine; and there were two kilns (coal fired),
each with a capacity of 20,000 bricks

c.1924 Steam powered plant replaced with a Siemens alternating current electric
motor. 1924 Photograph of the Duder Brickworks from Lake Road shows the
chimney and jetty below, square kiln and drying sheds. A later sketch (c.1924
—1934) also shows the drying sheds, pipes stacked, kiln with square chimney,
electricity wire, wharf and stone revetment.

1926- 1930s Duder twins died in late 1920s - Brickworks started falling into disrepair
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1935 Brickworks taken over by the Crum Brick and Tile Co. of Avondale and fell into disrepair.
Reported that 100ft chimney collapsed in storm between 1934 and 1936 and
production stopped. However, it is likely only part of the chimney collapsed. The
Brickworks machinery and buildings used in the mid-1930s were those installed in 1890
(apart from the electric motor).

1942 Site in military use during World War II.

1944 ‘Camp Duder’ created — demolished 3 brick drying sheds and remaining part of the
chimney. 1,000 bricks taken to Camp Takapuna to construct ammunition stores. The
rest of the Brickworks remained intact and the 1890s brick and pipe manufacturing
machine were still present. 4 temporary buildings (2 mess rooms and 2 men’s quarters)
made of concrete, fibrolite and corrugated iron erected on site.

1946 An aerial photograph taken in 1946 shows at least three buildings remaining on site

1951 The land including the large section originally occupied by the Brickworks and the
smaller lots 2 and 4 (facing Lake Road) were brought by Robert Penman, a Mercantile

Broker from Auckland. Documents show part of the property occupied by abandoned
Brickworks, several old sheds and kilns (in bad condition, except one).

1952 The base of the round kiln is visible, with three other buildings surviving shown in a
1952 aerial.
1953 The General Government acquired the R. and R. Duder Brickworks property by

proclamation under the Public Works Act, for Navy accommodation. One kiln in good
condition was taken by Penman.

1955? An aerial photograph dated 1955 shows the preparatory land development prior to the
construction of Naval residential units, with no standing structures. The only visible
remains are now within the escarpment/coastal area and the manager’s cottage on
Lake Road.

1957-1958 Naval housing scheme built — series of two storey terraced houses and one single
storey for caretakers, originally designed by Group Architects, but considerably revised
by Government Architect Gordon Wilson and Auckland District Architect Graham

Dawson.
2003 Naval housing demolished, except one single storey duplex on Lake Road.
1992 North Shore District Council sought permission for a public walkway along the

escarpment, making use of historic road associated with Brickworks leading from the
wharf to Lake Road.

1993 Loop track called ‘Mary Barrett Glade’ created by Mrs Mabel Pollack, a local volunteer.

2009 Concerns were raised by the Department of Conservation that the walkways in the
Mary Barrett Glade did not meet national safety standards and the area was
subsequently closed.

2010 Upgrade of track - remedial works only on limited portion of the walkway from the
Lake Road entrance to the location of the brick structure/ wharf associated with Duder
Brickworks. The earthworks were limited and included minor grading of the existing
walkway, vegetation clearance and the installation of a post and rail fence at the
western extent of the walkway.

2013 Transfer of ownership to Ngati Whatua (Wai Rawa Property holdings) as part of a
Treaty of Waitangi settlement.

2014 Wai Rawa Property holdings signed a 150 year lease to Rynman Ltd to build a new
retirement village.
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